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His Royal Highness Prince Al-Hussein bin Abdullah II, The Crown Prince
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And our mission

Our vision:

Continuous work of the company
And provide the best services to its customers
And its shareholders and permanent preservation

On the company’s reputation

Our mission:

We seek to continue to participate from companies in the
concrete sector and the challenge of the surrounding conditions
while preserving the environment and safety workers to benefit
from the communities, workers, and the community local and
national economy.
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Board of Directors

Chairman of The Board

Messrs. Suhail Jamil Muasher and Brothers company represented by

Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Muasher.

Members
Messrs. Arabian Cement Company, Bahrain, with three seats represented by:

Vice chairman of Board: His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul-Aziz Abdullah Al-Suleiman.

Mr. Moataz Qusay Al-Ezzawi.
Mr. Moataz Mohammad murtada Abdelhamid from 01/01/2022

Messrs. suheil jamil almuasher and brothers company represented by -Mr. basim jamil eisa
almuasher.

Eng. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami Member of the Board of Directors

H.E.Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Muasher Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais Member of the Board of Directors

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais Member of the Board of Directors

Eng. Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi Member of the Board of Directors

Jawdat Al-Alami and Brothers Company, represented by Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Eng. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Al-Alami: Member of the Board of Directors/CEO
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Despite all the challenges and difficulties that the region went through, whether from the
political, social and other aspects, the economic challenges posed a major challenge to the
company’s ability to work on increasing sales and pressure costs In work on increase profits.
Indeed, despite the high prices of raw materials, wages and other costs, the company was able

achieving better results than the previous year by realizing profits 1.808.554 Jordanian dinars.

In the coming years, the company hopes to be among the major companies in terms of
production , and the board of directors is looking forward to increasing profits.and expanding

production in order to increase profits.

All this would not have happened without the efforts of the executive management and al the
employees of the company , who deserve great thanks . we also extend our thanks to our valued
customers and shareholders of the company. We hope that the coming year with be a year of
goodness, peace and blessings for our country, Jordan, under the leadership of our beloved king
Abdullah II bin al-Hussein and his crown prince , his highness prince al-Hussein bin Abdullah II

may god protect them and take care of them .
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of The Board of Directors and myself, I thank the Security Commission, the Company
Comptroller Department and the shareholders, as well as all the colleagues working in the various
branches of the company for their outstanding performance and dedication to enhance the
company’s achievements, raise its efficiency and advance it towards excellence under the Auspices

of the Hashemite banner under the leadership of His Majesty King Abdullah II.

Kind Regards

Basem Jamil Issa Muasher

Chairman of Board of Directors

Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
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Board of Directors reports and the Twenty seventh Ordinary General Assembly

At the annual meeting held on Monday 27/03/2023
Dear Honorable Shareholders. ..

The Board of Directors is pleased to submit its Twenty-eight report indicating the financial
statements according to the Company’s Law:

1-A-Discription of the company main activities:

The company was established in February 1995 and obtained the right to commence work in
May 1995, and operational production began on 15/9/1995. Its headquarter is located in Amman,
with fourteen branches located in the Dead Sea, Agaba (Al-Maamel), Sahab, Al Qastal, Shafa
Badran, Maan, Karak, Al Mafraq, Ghor AL Safi (Potash), Al Zarqga area, Ramtha, Al-Azraq and
Al-Husun.

The main activity of the company is focused on the production and sales of Ready Mic Concrete
of all kinds through the company’s headquarters in Amman, and its branches mentioned above.

1-B-The company’s geographical locations and the number of emplovees in each of
them:

The company’s head office is located in Amman, Bayader Wadi Al-Seer / Industrial Area.

P.O. Box: 851602 Amman 11185 Amman.
Phone: 5858110 - 5858109
Fax: 5818177

Website: www.kingdomconcrete.jo
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Number of employees (320) registered on 31/12/2022, are divided as follows:

Branch Name Address Number of Employees

The Head Quarter Amman 167

Dead Sea Branch Sweimeh Development Zone 7

Agaba Branch Maamel 9

Ramtha Branch Ramtha 27

Al-Zarqa Branch Block Area 17

Sahab Branch Al-Rajeeb 23

Al-Qastal Branch Qastal Main Road 4

Al-Azraq Branch Azraq 12

Shafa Badran Branch Shafa Badran

Ma’an Branch Ma'an Development Zone

Al-Karak Branch Al-Karak

Al-Mafraq Branch Al-Mafraq
Al-Husun Al-Husun

Alpotas Alpotas

Alpotas 2 Alpotas 2

1-C- The size of the Company's Capital investment

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Jordanian dinar Jordanian dinar Jordanian dinar Jordanian dinar Jordanian dinar

27,702,372 26,793,192 25,687,497 27,062,307 28,055,434
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2- Affiliated Companies

A-- Amman company for the supply of construction and heavy machinery

e A limited liability company registered under the number 15843, date 26/2/2008 with
a paid capital of 30,000 Jordanian JD’s.

e  Wholly owned by Kingdom Concrete company and construction supplies.

Number of employees (1).

P.O. Box: 110201 Amman 11110 al-Rajeeb circle.
Phone:4163758

Fax:4163363

K/

¢ The main activity of this company:
Importing and exporting, general trading, construction equipment trade & spare parts.

Concrete Technology Company

e A limited liability company registered under the number 9053, date 26/7/2004 with a
paid capital of 80,000 Jordanian JD’s.

Wholly owned by Kingdom Concrete company and construction supplies since
1/1/2010

e Number of the employees (24).

e The main activity of this company:

e Produce building material, and general trading.
[ ]
C- Arabian Chinese company for leasing and selling heavy equipment
e A limited liability company registered under the number 12836 date 3/9/2006 with a
paid capital of 100,000 Jordanian JD’s.

Wholly owned by Kingdom Concrete company and construction supplies since
1/1/2011.

Number of employees (2).
P.O.box:110201 amman 11110 al-Rajeeb circle.
Phone:4163758 Fax:4163363

The main activity of this company:
Trade in heavy equipment of all kinds and their spare parts, selling and renting
equipment, and hoists and scaffolding.
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D- United Ready-Mix Concrete Company

A limited liability company registered under the number 252, date 18/12/2006 with
the capital money 800,000 JD.

Wholly owned by Kingdom Concrete company and construction supplies since
1/2/2017.

Number of the employees (13).
Phone: 5669269
The main activity of this company:

Produce and sell all kinds of Ready-Mix Concrete.
E - Masafat Housing Company

A limited liability company under the number 48387, dated 25/07/2017, with a defense capital of
30,000 Jordanian dinars.

* Wholly owned by Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company as of 07/25/2017

Number of registered employees (1)

* The main activity of the company: buying land and constructing apartments
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3-A- Names and Biography of Board of Directors members:

The Company Board of Director consists of 10 members Representative to banks and
companies in and out kingdom, holding at least the first certificate.

1- Mr. Bassem Jamil Issa Muasher
2- Chairman of the Board and representative of Messrs.
Suhail Jamil Muasher and Brothers Company.
Membership date: 2/5/1995
Birth date: 1958
Nationality: Jordanian
Scientific Qualification: Bachelors Business Administration
Year of Graduation:.1979
University Name: Tucson University - United States of America

Biography:

% Vice Chairman of Arab Chemical Detergent Industries.

¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Jordan Worsted Mills Company.

¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Arab International Hotels Company PLC

+¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Ready-Mix Concrete company and construction supplies.
% Member of the Board of Directors of Jordan sulphochemicals company.

2- His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul-Aziz Abdullah Al-Suleiman

Vice Chairman and representative of the Arabian cement company, Bahrain.

Membership date: 8/3/2008

Birth date: 1961

Nationality: Saudi Arabian

Scientific Qualification: Bachelor’s in economics and Finance

Year of Graduation: 1987

University Name: New York University - United States of America
Biography:

% 1997: Member of the Board of Directors of the Arabian Cement.

¢ Partner-and Vice Chairman and Managing Director of several companies, like: zahran
contracting company, Al Mazen Tours, Rolaco automotive and heavy equipment, Jordan
Steel Company.

% 1987: Member of the Board of Directors Bin Sulaiman Holding Company Ltd, works at
Bin Sulaiman Holding Group.

% Member of finance committee of Sedeq company

+¢ Insurance Committee of Chambers of Industry-Jeddah.
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3- Eng. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Membership date: 2/5/1995
Birth date: 1954
Nationality: Jordanian
Scientific Qualification: Bachelor’s in civil engineering
Year of Graduation: 1978
University Name: Purdue university - United States of America.

Biography:

% 1978 till 1979: Engineer at Housing Corporation.

¢ since 1979 till 2005: General Manager and Partner at Money Exchange Company.

+» Member of the Board of Directors of Kingdom Concrete company and construction
supplies since it was founded 1995 until now.
19909 till 5/5/2007: Chairman of the Board of Directors of International Card Company.
6/5/2007: Head of the Board of Directors of International card company.

% Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat For Specialized Transport Company from
since it was founded in 2006.

% Member of the Board of Directors of Assas for concrete products since it was founded in
2007.

¢ Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage & Financial Markets
Company.

4- Eng. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Membership date: 2/5/1995

Birth date: 1952

Nationality:. Jordanian

Scientific Qualification: Bachelor’s in civil Engineer
Year of Graduation: 1976

University Name: Birmingham University-England

Biography:

% 1976 till 1978: Civil Aviation
Partner-in an engineering consultancy office from the year 1979 until now.

* Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage & Financial Markets
Company since it was founded in 2005.

% Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat For Specialized Transport Company from
since it was founded in 2006 and until now.

¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Assas for Concrete products since it was founded in
2007.
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5- Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Membership date: 20/7/2008

Birth date: 1977

Nationality: Jordanian

Scientific Qualification: Bachelor’s in economics, Year of Graduation: 1999,
University Name: Purdue University - United States of America

Scientific Qualification: Master’s in business administration,

Year of Graduation: 2006,

University Name: American University of Beirut

Biography:
¢ Member of the Board of International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company
% Member of the Board of Director of National Insurance Company
% Member of the Board of Directors of Kingdom Concrete eompany and construction
supplies.
% Member of the Board of Directors of Assas for concrete products
% (Amman stock echogenic York Market)

6-Eng.Moataz Qusay Al-Azzawi

Membership date: 1/1/2018

Birth date: 12/6/1972

Nationality: Saudi Arabian

Scientific Qualification: Automated Computation Engineering
Year of Graduation: 1995

University Name: King Saud University

Biography:
¢ 23 Years’ Experience in Investment, Trade and Contracting Management.
% Member of the Board of Riyad Bank.

o

» Member of the Board of Directors of Savola Group.
¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Arabia Cement.
» Member Board of Directors of The Union of Telecommunications Company.
¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Herfy Food Services.
» Member of the Board of Directors of United Sugar company of Egypt.
* Member of the Board of Directors of Alexandria Sugar.
+* Member of the Board of Directors of Queen Food Industries.
» Member of the Board of Directors of Butterfly Food Industries.
¢ Board member of Qatrana Cement.
¢ Member of the Board of Directors of Saudi Industrial Construction and Islamic
Companies.
% Member of the Board of Directors of Saudi Arabia for Technology and Trade.
% Member of the Board of Directors of The Intermediaries for Development.
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7- Eng. Anas Mahmoud Ahmed Al-Chalabi

Membership date: 2/5/2009

Birth date: 1952

Nationality: Canadian

Scientific Qualification: Master’s in Mechanical Engineering
Year of Graduation: 1976

University Name: Imperial College London, England

Biography:
¢ He worked in the field of petroleum investment in the United Arab Emirates.
+» Member of the Board of Directors of the international Cards company from 6/5/2007 to
date.
% Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat specialized Transport company since it was
established in 2006 and to date.

8- H.E. Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Muasher
Member of the Board of Directors.

Membership date: 1/1/2016
Birth date: 1956
Nationality: Jordanian

Scientific Qualification: PhD Computer Engineering
Year of Graduation: 1981
University Name: Purdue University - United States of America

Biography:
¢ 2007: World Bank Senior Vice President in external affairs.
% 2002-2004: Deputy Prime Minister and Minister of Foreign affairs
s 1997-2001: Ambassador of Jordan in the United States of America.
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9- Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owaisi

Member of the Board of Directors, representing Bank of Jordan.

Membership date: 2/7/2012

Birth date: 1964

Nationality: Egyptian

Scientific Qualification: Master’s in finance
Year of Graduation: 1996

University Name: The University of Jordan

Biography:

+¢ Director of the investment and finance brokerage department at Bank of Jordan 7/1997 to
31/12/2006.

% General director of the university office for Computer Service for the
period of 10/1996 to 7/1997.

¢+ Economic researcher at the institute of Banking studies for the'period 3/1996 till 10/1996.

* Economics and statistical researcher at the department of the statistical for the period
3/1988 to 3/1996.

¢ Financial advisor, financial broker, and investment trustee certified by the Securities
Commission.

% Member of the Board of Directors of the Syndicate of Financial Services Companies since
its establishment until now.

* Representative of Bank of Jordan in the membership of the board of directors of the Assas
for Concrete Products Company until now.

%+ Member of the Board of Directors of the Association of Capital Market Certifiers for the
period 3/2002 until 10/2002

¢ Representative of Bank of Jordan in the membership of the Board of Directors of the
Amman Stock Exchange for the period 9/2002 until 9/2005.

% Representative of Bank of Jordan in the membership of the Board of Directors of Excel for
Financial Investment for the period 1-2 / 2010.

% 2001: Representative of Bank of Jordan in the membership of the Board of Directors of the
Bahraini Jordanian Company for Technology and communications.

** Representative of Bank of Jordan in the membership of the Board of Directors of the United
company for glass industries for the period 2003-2004.

% Representative of Bank of Jordan in the membership of Jordan Entrepreneurial Company
for the period 2007-2012.
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10- Mr. Moataz Muhammad Mortada Abdul Hamid Mortada

Member of the board of directors

Membership Date: 01/01/2022

Date of Birth: 14/03/1977

Nationality: Egyptian

Academic Qualification: Bachelor of commerce

Graduation Year: 1999

University Name: Tanta University — Arab Republic of Egypt

Biography:

 Executive vice president for financial affairs at the Arabian cement company from March
2013 to date

% General manager of the Financial Operations Sector at Bupa Arabia for Cooperative
Insurance Company from February 2012 to February 2013

% General manager of Group Finance at Halwani Brothers, a Saudi joint stock company, from
August 2007 to February 2012

¢ He held several positions in the financial management of Unilever Mashreq, and his last
position in the company was the group's financial controller, in addition to the responsible
for implementing the strategy in the company.

¢ Fellowship and membership of the American Institute of Certified Public accountants and
auditors since 2002
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3-B- Introductory Profile about Executive Management Staff: -

3-B-1- Eng. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami
Member of the Board of Directors, CEO of the company
- Membership date: 2/5/1995
- Birth- date: 1952
- Nationality: Jordanian
- Scientific.Qualification: Bachelors Civil Engineering
- University Name: Birmingham University-England
- Year of Graduation: 1976

Biography:

% 1976 till 1979: Engineer at The Civil Aviation Authority.

+* Partner in an Engineering Consultancy office from the year 1979 to date.

¢ Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage & Financial Markets
Company since it was founded in 2005.

% Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat For Specialized Transport Company since it
was founded in 2006 to date.

+¢ Chairman of the board Directors of Assas for concrete products since it was founded in
2007.

3-B-2- Eng. Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya
Director of operation department and Deputy General Manager
Birth date: 1960
Nationality: Jordanian
Scientific Qualification: Bachelor’s in Civil Engineering
Year of Graduation: 1985
University Name: University of Texas

Biography:
¢ Director of the Structural Supplies (Arab center for engineering studies).
+¢ Director of quality control in Jeddah water desalination project tail/ Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia.
¢ Director of quality control in Ready mix concrete and construction supplies.
¢ Director of Operations and Deputy General Manager.
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3-B-3- Mr. Loay Isam Abd Al-Salaam Arafat
Financial Manager and logistic manager Department
Birth date: 1969

Nationality: Jordanian

Scientific Qualification: Bachelor of Accounting/ CBA/ CFC / ACPA
Year of Graduation: 1991

University Name: University of Mosul, Iraq

Biography:
¢ Financial and Administration Manager Masafat for Specialized Transport Company
+¢ Financial Manager in Al Fardan company/Qatar
Financial and Administration Manager Data serve & Turnkey Solutions
** Financial auditor in Jordan telecom company

3-B-4- Mr. Mohamed Ahmed Ali Ghurair
Head of Credit and Collection Department
Birth date: 1977
nationality: Jordanian
Scientific Qualification: Master of Accounting
Year of Graduation:2004
University Name: Amman Arab University

Biography:
% Assistant of the Financial Director of Kingdom Concrete company and construction

supplies.

¢ Head of Accounting Department of Directors of Kingdom Congerete company and
construction supplies.

% Collection manager of Kingdom Concrete company and construction supplies.

% Personnel and Shareholder Relations Officer Directors of Kingdom Concrete company
and construction supplies.
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4- Major shareholders and the number of shares owned by each of them compared

to the previous vear (shareholders'owning more than 5% of the:company capital)
are:

Number of Percentage in Number of Percentage in
Name Shares in 2022 2022 Shares in 2021 2021

Arabian Cement Company

9,166,666 36.7% 9,166,666 36.7%

ArEhiek 2,500,000 e 2,500,000 105

International Brokerage and 1,632,899 2.53% 1,135,599 4.54%
Financial Markets Company

Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami 1,424,370 5.69% 1,348,629 5.40%

5- Competitive position for the company within its activity sector:

Ready Mix conerete and construction supplies company is one of the leading and distinguished

companies in the field of ready-mixed concrete production and its main markets are local
markets only.

6- Desree of dependence on specific suppliers‘or major clients locally or aboard:

6-A- The company relies on following Suppliers who make up 10% or more of the total
purchasing:

Number Supplier name Ratio of transfer

1 Qatrana Cement company 42%

There is no dependence on specific local and external suppliers, not mentioned above who they
constitute 10% or more of total purchase.

6-B- There is no dependence on any major client since the company supplies ready-mix concrete

to large number of contactors and multiple projects, and the company does not have any
special agreement with any party or contactor.

6-C- There are no contracts or engagement that the company entered into the chairman of the
board of directors, ‘the members of the board of directors, general' managers, or any
employee of the company or their relatives.
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7- Government protection or the privileges obtained by the company or any of its

Product.under the law regulations or others.

A- The company does not have any government protection, privileges, or any of its
product under the law regulations or others.
B- There are no patents or franchise rights obtained by the company.

8-  Decisions issued by the gsovernment, international organizations and others

have a material impact on the company business or products, or its

competitiveness.

A- There are no decisions issued by the organizations, or others that have a material impact
on the company’s work, products, or competitiveness.
B- The company is committed to applying quality standards and according to the
Specifications of the Directorate of Standards and Metrology, the Royal Scientific
society, and the Ministry of Public Works.

9-A- The number of the company’s employees and their categories of qualification:

Qualification

Employees in
the mother
company

Amman
Equipment
Supply
Company

Concrete
Technology
Company

Arabian
Chinese
Company

United Company
for Ready Mix
Concrete

Masters

Bachelor

2

Diploma

Secondary School and Below

Total

9-B- Training courses:

Course Name

Number of Employees

Connect the main mixers to the Oracle system

2

Concrete testing skills in international laboratories

1

American concrete institute center

1

Occupational safety and health course

1

Total

5

In addition, training courses for-employees are conducted on'the company’s premises, as well as special
training courses for concrete pumps and general, maintenance of machines and equipment’s on their own.
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10 - The risks to which the company is exposed:

e Change in the costs of fuel, raw materials, spare parts, and others.

11 - The important goals that the company passed during the financial year:

e Developing information technology in all departments of the company

e Costs control
The development of the special products department and the implementation of
many projects of concrete floors or decorative cement walls, the supply and
implementation of foamed concrete , the implementation of cement waterproofing,

the supply and implementation of ready-mixed plaster and others.

12-There is no financial impact of non=recurring nature operations that occurred during the
financial vear and not included within the main activity of the companvy.

13- The time series of realized Profits L osses., dividends. net shareholders' equity and prices
of securities issued by the companyv:

Year

Net realized
profits (losses)

Net shareholder
equity

The closing price
of the stock

Percentage of
Dividends

2018

142,555 JD

32,616,763 JD

0,54

2019

(3,567,363) JD

29,030,463 JD

0,37

*2020

(4,607,272) JD

24,397,119 JD

0,34

2021

610,079 JD

25,069,547 JD

0,47

2022

1,808,554 JD

26,841,811 JD

0.40

*in the financial statements ending on 30/09/2020 , there is a financial impact of operations
of a non-recurring nature, which is the decline In investments in sister public
shareholding companies with a value of (2.867.637)

Page 26 of 45




14-Analysis of the company's financial position and the results of our business during the

financial.year:

14-A- Company revenues:

The company's revenues amounted to 40,101,962 JD, distributed as follows:

2022/JD

Statement

Income from sales with affiliated comp. 39,504,894

Income on sale of properties 117,861

Income from investment properties 430,052

Other income 49,155

Total revenue 40,101,962

14-B- Budget, profits and losses:

The company managed to achieve a net profit of 1,808.554 Jordanian dinars during the

year 2022, compared to a net profit of 610,079 Jordanian dinars for the year 2021.

14-C- Sales:

The company's sales of ready-mix concrete were 39,251,686 JD for the year 2022, and
the table below shows the sales value for the last five years:

Year

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

Sales

33,007,191
JOD

30,500,458
JOD

21,868,683
JOD

29,338,269
JOD

39,251,686
JOD

Note that the prices per cubic meter are directly affected by the change in cement prices.
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14-D- Financial Ratios:

Statement

Gross profit margin

Turnover ratio

Sales to assets Ratio

Current liabilities to shareholders' equity Ratio

Total income to equity

14-E- Financial indicators and data:

Statement 2021/JD 2022/JD

The Registered capital 25,000,000 25,000,000

Subscribed capital 25,000,000 25,000,000

Total assets 53,647,916 58,471,699

Total equity 25,069,547 26,841,811

Total revenue 31,523,209 40,101,962

15-A- The company's future plan:

1 — expanding the scope of work to reach new opportunities in the local market.

2 —improving and developing services and products provided to customers.

3 — improving and developing efficiency and productivity by investing in newer technology and
improving operations.

15-B- Significant future developments and expectations of the Board of Directors:

e The company is working to develop its products to obtain an environmentally friendly
product.
e Studying the possibility of introducing new products to the building materials market.
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16- Audit fees:

The company's financial statements are audited by Messer. Talal Abu-Ghazaleh Co., as their fees for the
year 2022 for the ready mix, concrete company and its affiliated construction supplies amounted to the

following:

Name

Fee’s value/JD

Ready mix concrete and construction supplies

13000

Amman company for the supply of construction and heavy equipment

1000

Concrete technology company

2000

Masafat housing company

Arab Chinese company for trading and selling heavy equipment

1500

United ready mix concrete company

2500

® The company's auditor does not provide any services to the company other than the regular auditing work.

17-A statement of the number of shares issued by the company and owned by

members of the Board of Directors and their relatives:

Position

Nationality

31/12/2022

The
number of
shares
owned in
the name of
the member
personally

The
number of
shares
owned by
relatives of
the
member

Number
of
Shares

31/12/2
021

Controlled
companies

Suhail Jamil Muasher & Brothers Company It is
represented by Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Muasher.

Chairma
n

Jordanian

401,000

Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Member

Jordanian

55,500

55,000

Mr. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Member

Jordanian

1,424,370

1,348,629

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais

Member

Jordanian

5,000

5,000

Messrs. Jawdat Al-Alami & Brothers Company,
represented by Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-
Alami

Member

Jordanian

5,754

649

5,754

649

Messrs. Bahrain Cement Holding Company,
represented by:

- Sheikh Saud Abdul-Aziz Abdullah Al-Suleiman.
- Mr. Moataz Muhammad Mortada.

- Eng. Moataz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi

Member

Bahraini

9,166,666

9,166,666

Eng. Anas Mahmud Al-Chalabi

Member

Canadian

288,825

288,825

Mr. Marwan Jamil Issa- Muasher

Member

Jordanian

5,000

5,000
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17-B- Shares owned by senior management:

Position

Nationality

Number of
shares

31/12/2021

Number of
shares

31/12/2022

Eng. Daoud Youssef Khalil Kosaya Deputy General Manager Jordanian

Mr. Loay Isam Abdul-Salam Arafat CFO and Logistic manager Jordanian

Manager of the credit Collection
Department and
Shareholder Relations

Mr. Mohammed Ahmed Ali Ghurair Jordanian

*There are no companies controlled by people of top management

17-C Shares owned by relatives of members of the board of directors and senior
management:

Position

Nationality

Number of
shares as of

31/12/2021

Number of
shares as of

31/12/2022

Maha Abdul Rahman Khalifa,

Member of the

Jordanian

36.120

62.350

wife of Raja Khalil Al-Alami Board of Directors

* Relatives of'the remaining members of the board of directors and upper
management do not own shares in the company.

* There are no companies controlled by board members and their relatives.

* There are no companies controlled by senior management people and their relatives.
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18-A Benefits and Bonuses obtained by the chairman and members of the Board of
Direetors:

Transportations | The Audit

allowance T | SOUSE | Al

Name Position

Mr. Basem Jamil Essa Chairman 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Muasher

His Excellency Sheikh Saud Vice 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Abdul-Aziz Abdullah Al- Chairman
Suleiman

Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Al-Alami

Mr. Anas Mahmud Ahmed Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Chalabi

Dr. Marwan Jamil Isa Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Muasher

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Owais

Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al- Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Alami

Mr. Moataz bin Qusay Al- Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Azzawi

Mr. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al- Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD
Alami

Mr. Amro Osama Kamel Member 6,000 5,000 6,000 JD

Total 60,000 50,000 | 116,000 JD
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18-B The Benefits and Bonuses obtained by people of higcher management:

Name Job Salaries | Bonuses | Total

Eng. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al- Managing Director 265,368 265,368
Alami

Eng. Daoud Yousef Khalil Deputy General Manager 90,566 90,566
Kosaya

Mr. Loay Isam Abdul-Salam | CFO and Logistic manager 67,136 67,136
Arafat

Mr. Mohamad Ahmed Ali Manager of the credit 22,080 22,080
Ghurair Collection Department and
Shareholder Relations

* Due to the nature of the company’s business, each of the above managers has been
assigned a car.

19- Donations and grants paid by the company during the financial year:

The name of the donor Amount / JD

Social solidarity fund 10,000

Committee of zakat and alms of sheikh ahmad al-salik 6,000

Other donations 164

Total 16,164

20- There are no contracts, projects or engagements made by the exporting company with
the affiliated, sister, allied companies or with the chairman of the board of directors, the
members of the board, the general manager or any employee of the company or their
relatives (except for):

1- Masafat Transport Company. Main Transporter of raw material & Concrete.

2- Concrete technology company. Main Supplier of Additives.

3- Al-Quds Concrete Industries. Main Supplier of Ready-Mix Concrete for certain nearby
KC projects.
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21-A The company's contribution to protecting the environment:

1- Work is underway to develop the company’s products to obtain an environmentally
friendly product.

2- Environmental and recycling equipment has been installed, in addition to dust filters and
water sprinklers.

3- Work is underway to implement the recommendations of the Royal Scientific Society
related to improving the environmental site for the branches of the company to obtain clean,
environmentally friendly product.

21-B- The company’s contribution to serving the local community:

The company ensures employing local qualified staff near our branches

Participate in other partnership:

The company has invested %40,941 in Company Masafat for Specialized transport with
a 18,500,000 JD Capital.

The company has ivested 39.904% in Assas for Concrete Products Company with a
7,120,000 JD Capital.

The company invested 35.32% from Al-Quds Ready Mix Company with a 7,460,026 JD
Capital.

The company has invested 11.91% in International Brokerage and Financial Markets
Company with a 7,855,726 JD Capital.

The company has invested 6.89% in Qatrana Cement Company with a 90,624,000 JD
Capital.

The company invested 50% in Jerusalem Crushers and Quarries Company with a 30,000
JD Capital.

The company invested 2.71% from International Cards Company with a 16,777,706 JD
Capital.

Applying the Guidelines for the Corporate Governance Manual for Listed
Companies on the Amman Stock Exchange:

During the year 2021, the company worked to adhere to the application of the
guidelines contained in the Corporate Governance Manual for Companies listed in
Amman Stock Exchange.
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Governance Report

o Information and details related to the application of the provisions and rules of
corporate governance:

The commitment to implement the corporate governance instructions for the listed
companies, as the company has approved internal governance system from the Board of
Directors and according to the corporate governance rules, as follows:

1- Formation of the Boards of Directors:

The Board of Directors consists of ten members who are elected according to the
cumulative voting method by the general assembly is by secret ballot, the term of the
council is four years and all members of the council are persons whom are qualified and
have sufficient experience and knowledge of financial and legislative matters.

Duties and responsibilities of the Boards of Directors:

The Board of Directors has an internal system according to which the duties, powers, and
responsibilities of the board are defined through:

A- Develop strategies, policies, plans and procedures that will achieve interest of the company and
its goals, maximizing the rights of its shareholders, and serving the local community.

B- Establishing the necessary procedures to ensure that all shareholders, including non-
Jordanians, have their rights and treating them in a manner that achieves justice and equality
without discrimination.

Taking the necessary measures to ensure compliance with the provisions of the legislation in
force.

Adopting a risk management policy that the company may be exposed to.

Organizing the financial, accounting and administrative matters of the company according to
special internal regulations.

Preparing the annual and quarterly report on the preliminary business results, in accordance
with the provisions of the legislation force.

Approving the corporate governance report and including it in the company’s annual report.
Setting rules of professional conduct for the Board of Directors, executive management, and
employees of the company and to be reviewed and updated constantly.

Ensure that a website for the company is provided, which includes the most important data and
information about the company, provided that this information is constantly updated.
Appointing a liaison officer entrusted with monitoring matters related to corporate governance
applications with commission.
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K- Adopting the company’s disclosure and transparency policy and following up its
implementations in accordance with the authority’s requirements of censorship and legislation
force.

Establishing a policy to avoid conflicts of interest and procedures aimed at preventing insiders
from the company to exploit confidential internal information for material or moral gain.

Establishing a clear delegation policy in the company that specifies the authorized persons and
limits the powers delegating them.

Appointing the general manager of the company and terminating his services.

Ensuring the availability of the necessary administrative and technical competence and
expertise in the persons of the higher executive management to carry out the tasks assigned to
them, and determine their tasks and powers, and review the performance of their tasks, and the
extent of their implementations of established policies, plans and procedures.

Taking adequate steps to ensure the existence of internal control over the workflow in the
company, including the establishment of a special unit for internal control and auditing whose
task is to ensure compliance with the provisions of the legislation in force, the requirements of
the supervisory authorities, internal regulations, policies, plans and procedures established by
the Board of Directors.

Adopting the replacement and succession policy and the company’s human resources and
training policy.

Establishing a corporate social responsibility policy and its programs towards the local
community and the environment.

Establishing a mechanism to receive the complaints and suggestions submitted by the
shareholders, including their suggestions for including specific topics on the agenda of the
general assembly meeting in a way that ensures that they are studied and the appropriate
decision is taken regarding them within a specific period of time.

Establishing a mechanism that allows shareholders who own at least 5% of the company's
subscribed shares to add items to the agenda of the company's ordinary general assembly
meeting before sending it in its final form to the shareholders, provided that the Authority is
provided with this mechanism.

Adopting the policy for granting bonuses, benefits, incentives and salaries in the company.
Setting a policy to regulate the relationship with stakeholders to ensure the implementation of
the company's obligations towards them, preserve their rights, provide them with the necessary
information, and establish new.relationships with them.
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- Board Member in other participate in other public Shareholding companies

Mr. Basem Jamil Muasher

1- International Brokerage and Financial Markets Co. (Board Vice Chairman)
2- The Jordan Worsted Mills Company (Board Member)

3- Premier Business and projects Company (Chairman)

4- Arab International Hotels Company (Board Member)

Eng. Makram Khalil Al-Alami

1- Masafat for Specialized Transportation Company (Chairman)

2- International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company (Chairman)
3- International Cards Company (Chairman)

4- Assas for Concrete Products Company (Board Member)

Dr. Marwan Jamil Muasher

1- Jordan Kuwait Bank (Board Member)
2- Masafat for Specialized Transportation Company (Board Member)

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Naji Owais

1- Assas for Concrete Products Company (Board Member)
Eng. Anas Mahmud Al-Chalabi

1- International Brokerage and Financial Markets Co. (Board Vice Chairman)
2- Assas for Concrete Products Company (Board Member)
3- International Cards Company (Board Member)

Eng. Khalil Makram Al-Alami

I- Assas for Concrete Products: Company (Board Member)
2- International Cards Company (Board Member)

Eng. Raja Khalil Al-Alami

1- Masafat for Specialized Transportation Company (Board Vice'Chairman)
2- Assas for Concrete Products Company (Chairman)
3- International Brokerage and Financial Markets Company (Board Member)

* There are no board memberships in Jordanian public joint stock:companies for:

1- His Excellency Sheikh Saud Abdul-Aziz Abdullah Al-Suleiman
2- Eng. Moataz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi
3- Mr. Moataz Mortada- Abdel Hamid Mortada
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e The names of the members of the Board of Directors for the vear 2022

Name

Executive or Non-

Executive

Independent or not

Independent

Mr. Basem Jamil Essa Muasher

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Sheikh Saud Abdul-Aziz Al-Suleiman

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Anas Mahmud Ahmed Chalabi

Non-Executive

Independent

Dr. Marwan Jamil Isa Muasher

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Moataz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Owais

Executive

Independent

Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Moataz Mohammad Murtada

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Executive

Not Independent

Committees formed from the Board of Directors

1- The Audit Committee

2- Benefits and Bonuses committee

3- Governance committee
4- Risk Management Committee

e Names of the chairman and members of the committees emanating from the board of

directors

1-The Audit Committee:

1-A -Mr. Anas Chalabi - Committee president

Academic qualification: Master of Mechanical Engineering
Year of Graduation: 1976
University Name: University of London — UK

e Worked in the field of petroleum investments in the United Arab Emirates.
e Member of the Board of Directors in the International Cards Company.

e Member of the Board of Directors in Masafat for Specialized Transportation

Company.
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1-B- Eng. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Scientific qualification: Bachelor of City Architecture
Year of Graduation: 1978
University name: Purdue University - United States of America

Biography:

e Member of the Board of Directors of Kingdom Concrete company and construction
supplies since it was founded 1995 until now.
1999 till 5/5/2007: Chairman of the Directors' Body of International card company.
6/5/2007: Head of the Board the Directors of International Card Company.
Member of the Board of Directors of Masafat For Specialized Transport Company
from since it was founded in 2006.
Member of the Board of Directors of Assas for Concrete products since it was
founded in 2007.
Member of the Board of Directors of the International Brokerage & Financial
Markets Company.

1-C-Mr. moataz muhammad Mortada Abdul hamid Mortada
Scientific qualification: Bachelor of Commerce
University name: Tanta university -Arab Republic of Egypt

Biography:
e Executive Vice President of the financial affairs at the Arabian cement company
from March 2013 to date
General manager of the Financial Operations Sector at Bupa Arabia for
Cooperative Insurance Company, from February 2012 to February 2013.
Group General Manager of Finance at Halwani Brothers Company, a Saudi joint
stock company, from August 2007 to February 2012.

He held several positions in the financial management of Unilever Mashreq, and
his last position in the company was the group financial controller in addition to
the strategy implementation officer in the company.

Fellowship and membership at the American institute of certified public
accountants and auditors since 2022
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Benefits and Bonuses committee:

- Mr. Sohrab Owais (Chairman)

- Eng. Makram Al-Alami (Member)

- Mr. Basem Muasher (Member)
Governance Committee:

- Mr. Sohrab Owais (Chairman)

- Mr. Basem Muasher (Member)

- Mr. Moataz Mortada (Member)
Risk Management Committee:

- Mr. Basem Muasher (Chairman)

- Eng. Daoud Kosaya (Member)

- Mr. Loay Arafat (Member)

Executive positions and names of their occupants

Managing Director, Eng. Raja Khalil Al-Alami

Deputy General Manager and Director of the Operations Department is Eng. Daoud

Kosaya.
CFO and logistic manager, Mr. Loay Arafat.

Director of Credit and Collection Department, Muhammad Ahmad Ghurair.

The names of the lesal members of the Board of Directors

Name

Executive or
Non-Executive

Independent or
Not Independent

Saudi Sheikh Abdul Aziz Al-Suleiman, representative of the Arabian
Cement Company, Bahrain

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Moataz bin Qusay Al-Azzawi, representative of the Arabian
Cement Company, Bahrain

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Amro Osama Kamel, representative of the Arabian Cement
Company, Bahrain

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Sohrab Rakkad Owais, representative of Bank.of Jordan

Non-Executive

Independent

Mr. Khalil Makram Al-Alami, representative of Jawdat Al-Alami &
Brothers Company

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Basem Jamil Muasher, representative of Suhail Jamil Al Muasher’
and Brothers Company

Non-Executive

Not Independent

Names of the members of the natural board

of directors

Name

Executive or
Non-Executive

Independent or
Not Independent

Mr. Raja Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Makram Khalil Ibrahim Al-Alami

Not Executive

Not Independent

Dr. Marwan.Jamil Isa Muasher’

Not Executive

Not Independent

Mr. Anas Mahmud Ahmed Chalabi

Not Executive

Independent
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+* The number of meetings of each of the committees emanating from the Board of Directors

during the year2022:

Board of Directors First

Meeting
07/02/2022

Second

Meeting
20/04/2022

Third
Meeting
20/04/2022

Fourth

Meeting
16/06/2022

Fifth
Meeting

Eng. Makram Khalil Al-
Alami

Present | Present | Present

Present | Present

19/06/2022

Sixth

Meeting
26/07/2022

seventh

Meeting
20/10/2022

Eighth
Meeting
14/11/2022

ninth

Meeting
15/11/2022

Present Present

Present

Present

Sheikh Saud Abdul-Aziz
Al-Suleiman

Present | Present | Present

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Mr. Moataz bin Qusay Present | Present | Present

Al-Azzawi

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Mr. Amro Osama Kamel | Present | Present | Present

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Mr. Sohrab Racked
Owais

Present | Present | Present

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Dr. Marwan Jamil Essa Present | Present | Present

Muasher

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Mr. Khalil Makram Al-
Alami

Present | Present | Present

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Mr. Basem Jamil Present | Present | Present

Muasher

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Mr. Anas Mahmud
Chalabi

Present | Present | Present

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Eng. Raja Khalil Al- Present | Present | Present

Alami

Present | Present

Present Present

Present

Present

Members of the audit committee First Meeting

Second Meeting

Third Meeting

05/02/2022

18/04/2022

25/07/2022

Fourth Meeting
19/10/2022

Mr. Anas Chalabi Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. Makram Khalil Al-Alami Present

Present

Present

Present

Mr. Moataz Mortada Present

Present

Present

Present

Members of the Risk Committee

First Meeting
19/10/2022

Second Meeting
10/12/2022

Mr. Basem Muasher

Present

Present

Eng. Daoud Kosaya

Present

Present

Mr. Loay Arafat

Present

Present
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Members of the Governance Committee

First Meeting
20/10/2022

Second Meetin
18/12/2022

Mr. Sohrab Owais

Present

Present

Mr. Basem Muasher

Present

Present

Members of the Benefits and Bonuses Committee

First Meeting
20/12/2022

Second Meeting
06/02/2022

Mr. Sohrab Owais

Present

Present

Mr. Basem Muasher

Present

Present

Mr. Makram Khalil Al-Alami

Present

Present

+* The number of Board of Directors meetings with a statement of the number of attendees
during the vear 2022:
* One meeting was held between the Audit Committee and Mr. Talal Abu-Ghazaleh, the external

auditor of the company's accounts.
*Mr. Tariq Rabah Hindi has been appointed as a liaison officer to follow up on matters related to

the implementation of corporate governance at the Securities Commission.

s The Board of Directors requests the General Assembly to consider the agenda:

First: Reciting the Minutes of Meeting of the previous Ordinary General Assembly
meeting held in 2022.

Second:  Listen and approve the report of the Board of Directors for the fiscal year 2022
and the company business plan for the year 2023.

Third: Listen to company auditors report for the year 2022.

Forth: Discussing the financial statement of the company for the year 2020 and
approving it.

Fifth: Discharge the Chairman and members of Board of Directors for the period
ending in 31/12/2022 in accordance with the provisions of law

Sixth: Election of auditors for the fiscal year 2023 and authorization of the board of
directors to determine their fees.

Seventh  Any other matters that the General Assembly proposes to include in the agenda
within the provisions of article (171) of the company’s law.

Honorable Shareholders:
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+» The Board of Directors takes this opportunity to note on your behalf its appreciation to our
valued shareholders and all the company clients.

0

% Also, the board extends special thanks to the employees of the company for their sincere
efforts serving the company, as we look forward to the future with confidence and
determination and hope that this institution will continue moving forward.

Chairman of Board of Directors

Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Muasher

—_——~4-=—-————7/

Declaration
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We acknowledge the correctness, accuracy and completeness of the

information and data contained in the annual report for the year ending on
12/31/2022.

Chairman of the Board Chief Chief Executive Officer Financial manager
Mr. Basem Jamil Issa Muasher’  Eng. Rajaa Khalil Ibrahim Alami ~ Mr. Loay Essam Arafat

Board of Director Declaration
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The Board of Directors declares that there are no essential material matters that may affect
the continuity of the company during the following fiscal year 2022.

The Board of Directors declares his responsibility in preparing the financial statements 2023
& providing an effective control system in the company.

His,excellency sheikh Saud Abdelaziz Abdullah Al-Suleiman Mr. Basem jamil Issa Muasher

Member Chairman of board of directors

Mr. Khalil Makram Khalil Alami Mr. Sohrab Rakad Naji Owais

Member Member

s

Eng. Rajaa Khalil Ibrahim Alami Eng Makram Khalil Ibrahim Alami

Member , , Member

Eng Moataz bin Qusai Al-Azzawi Mr."Mutaz Muhammad Murtada

Member Member

Dr. Marwan Jamil Issa Al Muasher Eng Anas Mahmoud Ahmad Chalabi

Member Member
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies Company and its
subsidiaries

Public limited shareholding company
Amman - Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

consolidated financial statements.

and independent auditor's report

For the year-ended December 31, 2022
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated Financial Statement
and Independent Auditor’s Report
for the year ended December 31, 2022



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Index

Independent auditor’s report

Consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022
Consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended December 31, 2022
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022
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Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. International

W LB N ] U P o

Global Company for Auditing and Accounting F ST P ) B45 45 i

105180459
Independent Auditors Report

To Messrs, Shareholders

Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Opinion

We have audited the consalidated financial statements of Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
(Public Shareholding Company) and it's subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2022, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at December 31, 2022, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit based on International Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities towards these
standards are clarified in our report within the paragraph of responsibility of the auditor on auditing the
consolidated financial statements.

We are independent from the company based on the requirements of International Ethical Standards
Boards of accountants “A guide to ethical conduct for professional accountants” and the ethical
requirements that is related to our audit of financial statements, in addition to our commitment to other
ethical responsibilities, based on their requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters,

Expected credit losses Scope of audit

The company has adopted the requirement of ~ We obtained from management the calculation of
expected credit losses for International Financial expected credit losses as at the end of the fiscal

Reporting Standard No. (9). The allowance for ~ year, we evaluated the appropriateness of the

expected credit losses amounting to JD 4,023,417  estimates used to calculate historical change ratios

as of December 31, 2022, and customers were classified according to the

type of risk.
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Investment property impairment Scope of audit

According to the requirements of the Our audit procedures included, among other
International Financial reporting standards, the things, obtaining an evaluation of certified real
investment property is initially valued at cost, estate experts to assist us in determining the
including transaction costs, the carrying values market value of those investment properties at the
of investment property are reviewed for date of the consolidated financial statements
impairment when events or changes in the report.

circumstances indicate the carrying value may

not be recoverable. If any such indication of

impairment exists, impairments losses are

calculated in accordance with impairment of

assets policy.
Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the [information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. ]

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standard, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements thatare
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so,

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standard on Auditing, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

# Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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# Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as
a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain Sufficient and appropriate audit evidence about the financial information of establishments or
business activities within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and completion of the group audit. We remain absolutely
responsible for the audit report.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

The Company has proper accounting records which are, in all material respects, consistent with the
consolidated financial statements, we recommend to approve these financial statements by the general
assembly.

»
Talal Abu-Ghazaleh & Co. International

e
Mohammad Al-Azraq
(License # 1000)

Amman - February 7, 2023



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022

ASSETS
Non-current Assets
Property, plants and equipment

[nvestments in associates

[nvestment in financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income

[nvestment property

Checles under collection and on hand - non-current
Deferred tax assets

Total Non-current Assets

Current Assets

Inventory

Investment in financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss

Due from related parties

Accounts receivable and other debit balances

Trade receivables

Checks under collection and on hand - current portion
Checks on hand - related parties

Current aceounts at banks

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Notes 2022 2021

Jo JD
3 16,121,169 15,310,713
+ 11,394,158 11,040,494
5 6,836,190 6,836,190
b 4,672,066 4,663,107
260,218 434,690

7 505,835

39,789,636 38,505,194
H 1412427 1,406,220
9 122,631 150,591
10 624,961 1,159,826
11 1,007,629 608,958
12 5,764,058 4,362,658
9,315,789 7,303470
10 110,000 T
304,568 163,329
18,682,063 15,155,052
58,471,699 53,660,246

_

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these financial stataements
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated Statement of financial position as at December 31, 2022

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Capital

Additional Paid-in capital
Statutory reserve

Voluntary reserve

Change In fair value of investments in financlal assets al fair value
through other comprehensive income - assaciates

Accumulated losses

Net Equity

Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities

Loans - non current portion
Deferred checks -non current portion
Total Non Current Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Due to related parties

Other credit balances

lcome tax provision

Deferred checks - current portion
Deferred checks - related parties
Trade payables

Loans - current portion

Banks overdraft

Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Notes 2022 2021
D 15

25,000,000 25,000,000

1,600,000 1,600,000

13 3,076,317 2,969,731
14 2,705,172 2,703,172
(376,334) (340,044}
(5,163,344) {6,805,312)

26,841,811 25,069,347

17 2,588,519 2,693,225

14,635

2,603,154 2,693,225

10 5,340,040 5,927,2%
15 1,674,462 1,323,267
7 28,548 38,212
1,046,850 950,716

10 6,954,723 5,040,407
16 7,138,115 4,482,956
17 2,403,360 1,389,989
18 4,440,636 6,744,631
29,026,734 25,897,474

31,629,838 28,590,699

58,471,699 53,660,246

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these financial statacments
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022

Net sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other revenues, net

Share of profit of associates

Administrative selling and distribution expenses
Finance cost

Impairment losses of investments in associates
Profit before tax

National contribution

Surplus, (expense) of income tax

Income tax paid on prior ycars

Profit

Other comprehensive income

Change in fair value of investment in financial asset through other

comprehensive income - associates
Total comprehensive income
Weighted average number of shares

Profit per share

Notes 022 2021

D D
39,504, 8% 30,900,988
19 (35,960,960) (28488,427)
3,543,934 2,412,561
2 597,068 622,221
717467 528,635
2 (2,512469) (2069,370)
(939,407) (777,851)

4 (62420)

1344173 716,19
15 (10,647) (1,708)
7 48667 (58,769)
(11,59) (45,640)
1,408,554 610,079
(36,290) 6249
1,772,264 672428
25,000,000 25,000,000
i} 0/072]D 0/024]D

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these financial stataements
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Ready Mix Concrele and Construction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Gains from sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment losses of investment in associates
Share of profit of associates

Change in fair value of investment in financial asset at fair
value through profit or loss

Investment property depreciation
Expected credit losses

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Inventory

Due from related parties

Accounts receivable and other debit balances
Trade receivables

Checks under collection and on hand
Checks on hand - related parties

Due to related parties

Other credit balances

Deferred checks

Deferred checks - related parties

Trade payables

Income tax paid

Net cash from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plants and eguipment
[nvestment in financial agset ak fair value through profit or loss
[nvestments In associates

Purchase of investment property

Disposal of investment property

Net cash from investing activitics

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans

Banks overdraft

Net cash from financing activities

Met change in cash and cash equvilents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents = end of year

Information about non cash transactions

Transfer from projects under construction to property, plant and

ur.]uipment

2022 2021
D 1D
1,344,173 716,196
1,249,996 1,180,763
(120,320) (225,399)
62,420 -
(717 467) (528,635)
27,960 (60,151)
56,551 56,550
150,087 =
(6,207) (180,685)
534,865 1,912,115
(398,671) 2,569
{1.571,487) 1,062,184
(1,817.847) (704,279)
(110,000) 180,000
(587,256) 491,488
348,541 (33.,371)
110,769 363,304
1,914,316 (3,253,692)
2,655,159 1,587,816
3,125,582 2,266,773
(48,464) (157 421)
3,077,118 2,109,352
(2,102,319) (2,799,647)
162,187 330,489
- (63,910)
265,093 221,481
(20,510) (327,152)
155,000 690,000
{1,510,549) (1,948,739)
908,665 726,915
(2,303,995) (1,274,546)
(1,395,330) (547,631)
141,239 (387,018)
163,329 550,347
304,568 163,329
32,962 -

The accompanying notes constitute an integral part of these financial stataements
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

1. General information

- Legal status and activity for parent company and subsidiaries as follows:

Replstation date at the
Company name Legal status Ministey of Industry and Trade  Registeration No. Main activities

Construct, establish, own and manage
production plants and trading with all

Ready Mix Concrete and ] A u kind of cancrete, kerbstone, bricks and
Cnn:{rurllnn Supplies Coinpany Public shareholding company February 4, 1995 £ haurdi block metal farming and to do
all ather acts relating thereto inside and
outside the kingdom.
Adttinian for Consteuction Supply and sale of construction
Equipment Supply Company Limiled liability company February 26, 1008 15843 equipment and their spare parts
Conerete Technology Company Limited liability company July 26, 2004 9053 Manufacturing consiruction materials
Arabic Chinese Company for Sale and leaschold all heavy equipment
Leaschald and Salo of Equipment  Litniled liability company Saptomber 3, 2006 1283 anid their spare parts
United Ready Mix Concrefe T,
Company Private lability company December 18, 2006 252 gy
[furchase of lands , apartments
constriiction and resale without
Masalat for Huuslns Cnmpan)' Lamiled ll:lbilii)' company July 25, 2017 44387 UNSUFIoS interes!

~ The company consists of the following branches and factories: Amman -Zarga — Agaba - Ramtha -
Sahab -Swemeh - Qustal -Shafa Badran -Karak— Potash - Flusun -Mafrag,
~ The company granted according to Development and Special Zone Law the following tax rates:

Agaba branch (Agaba Special Economic Zone) %5

Ma'an branch (Development Zone) %5

— The board of directors has approved the consolidated financial statement on February 6, 2023 and it
requires the approval of the General Assembly.

2. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements and significant accountant policies
2-1 Basis for financial statement preparation

— Consolidated Financial statementis preparation framework

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by International Accounting Standard Board.

— Measurement bases used in preparing the consolidated financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis exceplt for measurement
of certain items at bases other than historical cost.

- Functional and presentalion currency

The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Jordanian Dinar (J2), which is the
functional currency of the entity.
2-2 Using of estimates

- When preparing of financial statements, management uses judgments, assessments and
assumptions that affect applying the accounting policies and currying amounts of assets,
liabilities, revenue and expenses. Actual result may differ from these estimates.

- Change in estimates are reviewed on a constant basis and shall be recognized in the period of the
change, and future periods if the change affects them.

- For example, estimatos may be required for doubtful and bad debts, inventory obsolescence,
useful lives of depreciable assets, provisions, and biological assets and any legal cases against the
entity.



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

2-3 Standards and Interpretations issued that became effective

Standard number or Description Effective
interpretation date
Amendments to Extension of an optional exemption permitting a January
IFRS (1) subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter after its 1,2022
Subsidiary First-time | parent to measure cumulative translation differences

Adoption of using the amounts reported by its parent, based on the

International Financial | parent’s date of transition to IFRSs. A similar election 15

Reporting Standards available to an associate or joint venture.

Amendments to Minor amendments were made to IFRES (3) to update the | January
IFRS (3) references to the Conceptual Framework for Financial 1,2022
Business Reporting and add an exception for the recognition of

Combinations

liabilities and contingent liabilities within the scope of
IAS (37) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets. The amendments also confirm that
contingent assets should not be recognised at the
acquisition date.

IFRS (9)
Financial Instruments

Annual Improvements to IFRS (9), for year 2018 - 2020

June 1,2022

Amendments to

IFRS (16)
Covid-19-related Rent
Concessions,

As a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, rent concessions
have been granted to lessees, Such concessions might take
a variety of forms, including payment holidays and
deferral of lease payments.

In May 2020, the IASB made an amendment to [FR5 16
Leases, which provides lessees with an option to treat
qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications. [n many
cases, this will result in accounting for the concessions as
variable lease payments in the period in which they are
granted.

The relief was originally limited to reduction in lease
payments that were due on or before June 30, 2021.
However, the IASB subsequently extended this date to
June 30, 2022,

January
1,2020 April
1,2021

Amendments to The amendments prohibit an entity from deducting from | January
[AS (16) the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any | 1,2022
Property, Plant and proceeds from selling items produced while bringing that
Equipment agset to the location and condition necessary for it to be

capable of operating in the manner intended by

management. Instead, an entity recognizes the proceeds

from selling such items, and the cost of producing those

items, in profit or loss.
Amendments to The amendment to clarifies that the direct costs of January
1AS (37) fulfilling a onerous contract include both the incremental | 1,2022
Provisions Contingent | costs of fulfilling the contract and an allocation of other
Liabilities and costs directly related to fulfilling onerous contracts.
contingent Assets




Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Sharcholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Standards and Interpretations issued but not yet effective

*+ discounted probability-weighted cash flows

= an explicit risk adjustment, and

= A contractual service margin (CSM) representing the
unearned profit of the contract which is recognised as
revenue over the coverage period.

Standard number or Description Effective date
interpretation
IFRS (16) The amendment clarifies how a seller - lessee January
Leases subsequently measures sale and lease back transaction, 1,2024
IERS (17) IFRS (17) was issued in May 2017 as replacement for IFRS | January
Insurance Contracts (4) Insurance Conltracts. It requires a current measurement | 1,2023
model where estimates are remeasured in each reporting (deferred
period, Contracts are measured using the building blocks | from January
of: 1,2021)

Amendments to
IAS (1)

The amendments to Presentation of Financial Statements
clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or
non-current, depending on the rights that exist at the end
of the reporting period.

Classification is unaffected by the expectations of the
enlity or events after the reporting date.

January 1,
2024
(Deferred
from January
1, 2022).

Amendments to IAS

The amendments to IAS (1) require entities to disclose

January 1,

The distinction between accounting policies and changes
in accounting estimates is important, because changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively to future
transactions and other future events, but changes in
accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively
to past transactions and other past events as well as the
current period.

(1) and 1IFRS Practice their material rather than their significant accounting 2023
Statement 2 policies,

To support this amendment, the IASE also amended IFRS

Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to

provide guidance on how to apply the concept of

materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to The amendment to 1AS (8) Accounting Policies, Changes January 1,
IAS (8) in Accounting Estimates and Errors 2023,




Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Sharcholding Company
Amman = The Hazshemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

2-4 Summary of significant accounting policies

— Basis of consolidation

- The financial statement of parent company consists the financial statement of (Ready Mix
Conerete & Construction supplies) and its subsidiary as follows:

Percentage of

Company name ownership
Y
Amman for Construction Equipment Supply Company 100
Concrete Technology Company 100
Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and Sale of Equipment 100
Masafat for Housing Company 100
Uniteel Ready Mix Concrete Company 100

- Control is presumed to exist when the parent is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement through its power over the investee, in exceptional circumstances, it can be
clearly demonstrated that such ownership does not constitute control.

— Intergroup balances, transactions, income and expenses shall be eliminated in full.

- Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or
indirectly, to the parent.

- If a parent loses a control of a subsidiary, the parent derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary and non-controlling interests and other equities, recognize any profit or loss resulted
from loss of control in the statement of comprehensive income, recognize any investment
retained after loss of control at its fair value.

-~ Financial instruments

Financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and financial
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

—Financial assets

- A financial asset is any asset that is:

(a) Cash;

(D) An equity instrument of another entity;

(c) A contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity, ot to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favorable to the entity.

(d) A contract that will ar may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

~Financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset, but for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs are recognlzed in profit or loss.
- Financial assets are classified to three categories as follows:

- Amortized cost,

- Fair value through other comprehensive income,

~ Fair value through profit or loss.

- A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

(a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold agsets in order to
collect contractual cash flows.

{b) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
FPublic Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Noteg to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

— Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of the
following conditions are met:
~ The financial assets is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows.
- The contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interests on that principal amount outstanding,.

~ All other financial assets (excluding financial assets at amortized cost or at fair value though
other comprehensive income) are subsequently measured at fair value in profit or losses.

= On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the entity may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investments fair value in other
comprehensive income,

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Subsequently financial assets are measured as follows:

Financial assets Subsequent measurement

: _ Are subsequently measured at fair value
Financial assets at fair value ' . s
through profit or loss net gains or losses, including interests revenues or

dividends, are recognized in profit or loss

Are subsequently measured at amortized cost Llsing
effective interests method.

Financial asserts at amortized — Amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses.

cost ~ Interests income, gain and loss of foreign exchange
and impairment loss are recognized in profit or loss.

~ Gain and loss from disposal are recognized in profit
or loss.

Are 5ubsequenl:ly measured at fair value

— Interests income is calculated using effective interests
method, gains and losses from foreign exchange,

Debts instruments at their value impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.
through other comprehensive | _ Opher net gains or losses are recognized in other
T-ome comprehensive income.

— On derecognition accumulated gains and losses in
other comprehensive income are reclassified into
profit or loss.

Are subsequently measured at fair value

~ Dividends are recognized as income in profit or loss,

Equity instruments at fair value unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
through other comprehensive part of investment cost.
income

— Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income (OCI) and are never
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Dere iti inancial assets
Derecognition of financial assets (or a part of a group of similar financial assets) when:

— The contractual rights to the cash flow from the financial assets expire, or
— It transfers the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial assets or assume a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows entirely to a third party.

10



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Financial liabilities

- A financial liability is any liability that is:

(a) A contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity, or to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the entity; or

(b) A contract that will or may be settled in the entity’s own equity instruments.

- Financial liabilities are initially recognized at fair value less transaction costs, directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of those liabilities, except for the financial liabilities
classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at fair value.

— After initial recognition, the entity measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost using the
effective interest method, except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
which are measured at fair value and other determined financial liabilities which are not
measured under amortized cost method. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are stated at fair value, with any resulting gain or loss from change in fair value is
recognized through profit or loss.

Trade pavables and accruals

Trade payables and accruals are liabilities to pay for goods or services that have been received or
supplied and have been either invoiced or formally agreed with the suppliers or not.

Offsetting financial instruments

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, an entity currently has a legally enforceable right to
set off amounts and intends either to settle in a net basis, or through realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, current accounts and short term deposits at banks with a maturity
date of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade receivables

— Trade receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
that are not quoted in an active market.

— Trade receivables are stated at invoices amount net of allowance for expected credit losses
which represents the collective impairment of receivables.

Investments in associates

~ An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a
subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture, Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control
over those policies, if the entity holds 20 percent or more of the voling power of the investee,
itis presumed that the entity has signified influence.

— The entity’s investment in its assoclate is accounted for under the equity method of
accounting, Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognized at
cost and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to recognize the investor’s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The investor’ share of the profit or
loss of the investee is recognized in the investor’s profit or loss. Distributions received from an
investee reduce the carrying amount of the investment.

— The investor’s share of other comprehensive income of the investor changes is recognized in
other comprehensive income of the entity.

— Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the investor’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities is recognized as goodwill. The goodwill is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not assessed, annually, for impairment separately,
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

— Any excess of the investor’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognized as income.

- Financial statement of the assoclate are prepared for the same date as the financial statements
of the entity. And when necessary the accounting policies of the associale are amended to
comply with the accounting policies of the entity.

— After applying the equity method, the entity determine, if necessary, to recognize impairment
losses on its investments in associates, and determine at the date of the financial statement
that the investment in associate is impaired, and if so, the entity calculate the impairment
amount as the difference between the recoverable amount and the carrying amount which is
recognized as a loss in the income statement,

— When significant influence loss of the associate occur, the entity shall measure the retained
interest at fair value, and recognize the difference between the carrying amount of the
investment and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing in the
statement of income.

— Intra-entity profit and loss transactions are eliminated to the extent of the investor’s interest in
the relevant associale.

Impai i

— At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assels carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVTOCI are credit - impaired. A financial asset is “credit impaired”
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have occurred.

— The entity recognizers loss allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) on:
~ Financial assets measured at amortized cost.

—Debt investments measured at FVOCI
—Contract assets.

— The entity measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

- Loss allowances for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

~ When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Entity considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort based in
the entitys historical experience and forward looking information.

= The entity considers a financial asset to be in default when:

—The client is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the entity in full, without recourse by the
entity to actions such as realizing security (if any); or
—The financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

— Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets.

A financial assets is written of when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows. The entity write of the gross carrying amount of the financial asset is
in case of, liquidation, bankruptcy or issuance of a court ruling to reject the claim for financial
asset.

Inventories

- Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value,

- Inventory costs comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present locabion and condition,

~ Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estmated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

— The cost of inventory is assigned by using the weighted-average cost formula.



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Property, plants and equipment

- Property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at their cost being their purchase price
plus any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition
necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

— After initial recognition, the property, plant and equipment are carried, in the statement of
financial position, at their cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment.

~The depreciation charge for each period is recognized as expense. Depreciation is calculated
on a straight line basis, which reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits
are expected to be consumed over the estimated useful life of the assets using the following

rates;
Categury 2022
ﬂ/n

Buildings & construction 25
Vehicles & pumps 2-16
Devices, equipment, tools, generators,
water tanks and wells 5-7
Machines & equiprment 5-15
Decoration & lease improvements 315
Bulldozers & forklifts 5-7
Furniture & office equipment 5-20
Software & computers 5-25

- The estimated useful lives are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

— The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in the circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If
any such indication of impairment exists, impairments losses are calculated in accordance
with impairment of assets policy.

- On the subsequent derecognition (sale or retirement) of the property, plants and equipment,
the resulting gain or loss, being the difference between the net disposal proceed, if any, and
the carrying amount, is included in profit or loss.

- Amount paid to build up property and equipment is initially carried to projects under
construction account. When the project becomes ready for use, it will be transferred to
property and equipment caption.

Investment property

- Investment property is property (land or building- or part of a building- or both):
- Held by the entity to earn rentals,
~ For capital appreciation, or both, rather than for use in production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes, or for sale in the ordinary course of business.
- Investment property 15 measured initially at its cost, including transaction costs.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

- After initial recognition, investment property is carried, in the statement of financial position,
at its cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment. Land is not
depreciated.

— Buildings depreciation charge for each period is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income. Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, which reflects the
pattern in which the buildings' future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the
entity over their estimated useful life of 25 years.

~ The estimated useful lives are reviewed at each year-end, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

= The carrying values of investments property are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in the circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such
indication of impairment exists, impairments losses are calculated in accordance with
impairment of assets policy.

= On the subsequent derecognition (sale or retirement) of the investment property, the resulting
gain or loss, being the difference between the net disposal proceed, if any, and the carrying
amount, is included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

— At each statement of financial position date, management reviews the carrying amounts of its
non-financial assets (property, plant and equipment and investment property) to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have been impaired.

= If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any, being the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
asset's fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. The asset's fair value is the amount for
which that asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable, willing parties in arm's length
transaction. The value in use is the present value of the future cash flows expected to be
derived from the asset.

- For the purpose of impairment valuation, assets are grouped at the lower level that have cash
flow independently (cash generating unit), previous impairment for non-financial assets
{(excluding goodwill) is reviewed for the possibility of reversal at the date of the financial
statements.

- An impairment loss is recognized immediately as loss.

- Where an Impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but the increased carrying amount
due to reversal should not be more than what the depreciated historical cost would have been
if the impairment had not been recognized in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately as income.

Provisions

— Provisions are present obligations (legal or constructive) resulted from past events, the
settlement of the obligations is probable and the amount of those obligations can be estimated
reliably. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the statement of financial position date,

- Provisions reviewed and adjusted at each statement of financial position date. If outflows, to
settle the provisions, are no longer probable, reverse of the provision is recorded as income.

— If the entity expected to be reimbursed for a part or full provision, the reimbursement shall be
recognized within assets, when it is virtually certain and its value can be measured reliably.

— In the statement of comprehensive income, the expense relating to a provision may be
presented net of the amount recognized for reimbursement.

— Where the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted by using a
currently pre-tax discount rate that reflect the risks specific to the liability, when using
discount any increase in provision is recognized as a financial cost over time,



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplics
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemile Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

Related parties

- Transactions with related parties represent transfer of resources, services, or obligations
between related partes.

= Terms and conditions relating to related party transactions are approved by management.

End of service indemnity

Indemnity is provided for in accordance with Jordanian Labor Laws and Regulations,
Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss, attributable to ordinary shareholders,
by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Revenue recognition

~ The entity recognize revenue from sale of good and rendering of service when control is
transferred to the customer.

- Revenues are recognized based on consideration specified in contract with customer that
expected to be received excluding amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

- Revenue is reduced for amount of any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed by the
entity,

Sale of ready mix congrete

The company sells ready mix concrete to customers through its own sales outlets. Revenue is
recognized at the transfer of control which represent the delivery of ready concrete to customers at

their designated locations and obtain approved receipt voucher from them and the issuance of the
invoice.

Dividend and interest revenue

— Dividend revenue from investments is recognized when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

— Interest revenue is accrued on a Hime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable.

Lease contracts

The entity assesses at the commencement date of the lease agreement whether the contract is a
lease or includes a lease agreement, And if the contract is in whole or in part transfer the right to
control the use of a specific asset from one party to another for a specified period of time in
exchange for a consideration, the entity recognizes the right-of- use assets and lease liability with
the exception of low value and for short term leases (i.e. those with a lease term of 12 months or
less) in which the entity recognizes the lease payments as operating expenses on either a straight-
line basis over the lease term or another systematic basis is more representative of the time period
to depreciate the economic benefits of the leased assets,
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

The entity as a lessee

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the contract transfer all risks and benefits
of ownership to the lessee, The other types of rental contracts are classified as operating contracts,
Contracts are classified as starting the rental contract

Lease income from operating lease is recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred by the entity in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying value of the leased asset and recognized as an expense
ovaer the lease term on the same basis as the lease income. Assets leased under operating leases are
depreciated based on the same depreciation policy adopted by the entity for similar assets.

Borrowing costs

- Borrowing costs are interest and other cosls that an entity incurs in connecon with the
borrowing of funds.

- Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred,

Income tax

Income tax is calculated in accordance with Jordanian laws and regulations.

Foreign currencies

— In preparing the financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions.

~ At each statement of financial position date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the statement dale (closing rate). Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined,

— Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during
the period or in previous financial statements shall be recognized in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Contingent liabilities

— Contingent liabilitics arc possible obligations depending on whether some uncertain future
events occur, or they are present obligations but payments are not probable or the amounts
cannot be measured reliably.

- Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2022

(*) Included in the lands mentioned above a land for value of JD 218,633 with the right of disposition
is prohibited, Also, there are lands with a book value of JD 1,167,793, and buildings with a net
book value of JD 1,167,163 mortgaged in favor of Cairo Amman Bank in exchange for a loan
granted to the company, as mentioned in Note No, (17), where estimated value of the lands and

the building on which it is located according to the estimation report of Cairo Amman Bank
amounted to JD 5,505,000,

(**) Depreciation expense was distributed at the statement of comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
JD JD
Manufacturing expenses 1,200,074 1,127,906
Administrative expenses 49,922 52,857
Total 1,249,996 1,180,763
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies

Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2022

(*) Movement of investment through the year was as follows:

2022 2021
JD D

Balance - beginning of year 11,040,494 10,670,991
Distributed cash dividends (265,093) (227,223)
Share of resulls of associates 717,467 528,635
Share of change in fair value of investments in financial
assets through other comprehensive income -associates (36,290) 62,349
Closing the increase in amount of the investment
valuation in the receivable of Jerusalem Crushers and
Quarrying company 1476
Investments purchase - 4266
Impairment losses of investment in associates (62,420 -
Balance - end of year 11,394,158 11,040,494

(") According to Board of Directors Decision No. (2), held on April 20, 2022, it was decided to fully
impaire the entire investment in the International Cards Company and the debt owed within two
years starting from 2022.

(***) The following are summary of information about associate companies:

Price of share on
Company name December 31, 2020 Total assels Totalliabilties Revenue Proft loss)
i D D P D
MiasaftorSpecialzed Transpor i B 1308846 73180 1060370
Assas for Concrete Products 3l
Alquds Ready Mix Concrete Company 1% RS T80 §434.59 14107
Inernational Brolerage & Fnancial Mackets Co () {1 57009 0758 601 (1819%)
Iterationa] Cands Company () 03 DA% 78 13977l 13316 (746,448
Jenusalen Crushers and Quarrying LLC Unlistad
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the financial statement for the year ended December 31, 2022

(***/*) The summary information for the Global Brokerage and Financial Markets Company was
obtained from the latest financial statements issued by the company for the period ending on
March 31, 2022, The share price is the last trading price on March 31, 2022.

(***/**) The summarized information for the International Company for Brokerage and Financial
Markets was obtained from the latest financial statements issued by the company for the year
ending on December 31, 2020

(****) Among the investments, there are 50,000 shares in associate companies with a market value of JD
18,550 as of December 31, 2022 reserved according to the instructions of the Securities exchange
Commission for membership in the boards of directors of these companies.

5. Investments in finaneial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

2022 2021

JD JD
Balance - beginning of year 6,836,190 6,836,190
Impairment - -
Balance - end of year 6,836,190 g 6,836,190

() The above mentioned item represents %6.89 of Qutraneh Cement Company capital pledged for Arab
Cement Company - Saudi Shareholding Company.
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

7. Income tax

A,

Income tax provision

2022 2021

D o
Balance - beginning of year 38,212 91,224
Provided during the year-subsidiary 18,582 58,769
Provided during the year-Agaba branch 8,625 B
Advance payments on income tax account (2,275) -
Paid during the year (34,596) (111.781)
Balance - end of year 28,548 38,212

The surplus expense tax shown in the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

2022 2021
JD D
Deferred tax assets 665,695 -
[ncome tax - subsidiarics (18,582) (58,769)
Income tax - Agaba branch and development zones (8,625) .
Income tax for the year (151,867) -
Surplas (expense) income tax for the year 486,621 (58,769)
—_— ———
B. Deferred tax assets
2022
accumulated and
acceptable taxable Tax assets at
Added Released losses at the end of the end of the
amounts Tax aggots amounts the yeal“ yEﬂl’
Included accounts 18] D jD D
Accumulated
acceptable taxable
losses 3,328478 665,956 (799,300) 2,529,178 505,835

Deferred tax assets were calculated at a rate of 19% and a national contribution of 1% as of
December 31, 2022, according to the applicable corporate income tax rate.
- Ready Mix Concrete & Construction Supplies Co

— The tax status of the company has been settled until the year of 2020 the tax return for year 2021
was submitted during the legal period, and the tax consultant believes that the provision is

sufficient.

~ The sales tax returns have been audited and accepted until 12-2021 and 1- 2022, Subsequent
returns were submitted until the last tax period 10,11- 2022 within the legal period, and they
have not been audited to date.
- Developmental zones
-~ The tax status of the company has been settled until the year of 2017 the tax return for years
2018,2019 and 2020 was submitted during the legal period, and tax audit was carried out by the
tax Department,and no report has been issued to date,
- -The sales tax returns were audited and tax until the period 12-2021 and 1-2022, and the audit
report has not been issued to date. The returns were submitted for the subsequent tax periods
until the last tax period 10 and 11-2022 within the legal period and have not been audited to

date
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Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNaotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

— Agaba branch

—The tax status for the year 2018 was settled and the tax returns for the years 2019 and 2020 were
submitted within the legal period, and the tax audit has not yet been conducted, and the year
2021 was accepted on the sampling system.

= The sales tax returns were audited and accepted up to the period 10 and 11-2016, and the tax
audit was conducted for the subsequent periods up to 12-2021 and 1-2022, and the audit report
has not been issued to date. The tax returns were submitted for the subsequent tax periods until
the last tax period 10 and 11-2022 within the legal period and have not been audited to date,

- .Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and Sale of Equipment

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
for the year 2018 and the tax return was submitted to income tax department for year 2019,
2020,and 2021 within the legal period.

- Amman for Construction Equipment Supply Company

A final settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to year 2020,
tax return for year 2021 submitted with in legal period and in the opinion of the tax consultant the
provision is suffiaent,

— Conerete Technology Company

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
for the year 2019, and no final settlement was reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department
up to year 2020 and 2021, noting that the tax return was submitted within the legal period, and the
tax consultant believes that the provision is sufficient.

- United Ready Mix Concrete Company
A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
until the of year 2020 noting that the tax return was submitted for a year 2021 within the legal
period, and the tax consultant believes that the provision is sufficient,

- Masafat for Housing Company

A final settlement was reached between the company and the Income and Sales Tax Department
up to year 2019, and the tax return was submitted for year 2020 within the legal period , and The
Income Tax Department has not reviewed it to date, and the income tax return for the year 2021
has been accepled within the sampling system

8. Inventory

2022 2021

JD JD
Spare parts 620,224 616,324
Raw material 723,330 624,646
Finish goods - subsidiary 135,036 21,656
Letters of credit & goods in transit 289,239 450,448
Less: slow moving inventory provision (*) (355,402) (366,854)
Net 1,412,427 1,406,220
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Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Haghemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the consolidated finaneial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

10.

(*) The movement of provision during the year is as follows:

2022 2021

Jo 1D
Balance - beginning of year 366,854 366,961
Recovery of a provisition (11,452) -
Disposals during the year - (107)
Balance - end of year 355,402 366,854

—_— = —_—

Investments in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

2022 2021
ID ID
Balance - beginning of year 150,591 26,530
Sale and purchase during the year, net - 63,910
Change in fair value (27,960) 60,151
Balance - end of year 122,631 150,591

_————

Related parties

— Related parties transaction consist of transaction with major shareholders and companies which the
major shareholders have control over them. Transaction with related parties are trading in nature.

= Due from related party represent following;:

2022 2021

1D o
Assas for Concrete Products 504,465 916,225
International Cards Company 37,109 38,021
Al-Quds Ready Mix Supplies 36,519 150,228
Saving fund for the employees of the Ready Mix
Conerete and Construction Supplies Company 22,993 -
Masafat for Car Leasing 19,727 31,623
International Brokerage & Financial Markets Co . 4,148 2,859
Jerusalem Crushers and Quarrying L.L.C - 20,870
Total 624,961 1,159,826



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company

Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

— Checks on hand - related parties consist of the following:

Masafat for Specialized Transport

Assas for Concrete Products
Total

- Related parties payables represent the following:

Masafat for Specialized Transport
Qatrana Cement Company

The Fund Company for Housing

Al Quds Crushers and Quarrying
Jordanian erushers and equipment supply

Jordanian Vehicle Tracking
Total

2022 2021
D JD
90,000
20,000
110,000 z
2022 2021
JD JD
2,337,202 3,100,012
1,812,237 2,070,344
1,138,123 755,588
52,388 -
. 852
: 500
5,340,040 5,927,296

= Deferred checks - related parties consist of the following

Qatrana Cement Company
Masafat for Specialized Transport
The Fund Company for Housing
Assas for Concrete Products

Jordanian Vehicle Tracking
Total

2022 2021
D Jb
5,844,607 3,888,407
886,000 1,000,000
217,078 152,000
0,000 -
1,038 =

6,954,723 5,040,307

- Major transaction with associates stated in the statement of comprehensive income were as follows:

Purchases

Ready mix concrete sales
Real estate rental

Others

2022 2021
D JD
2,341,977 2,828,722
682,909 264,348
23,448 23,145
12,182 2,818
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

11. Accounts receivable and other debit balances

2022 2021

JD D
Letter of credit and guarantees deposit 489,249 22,988
Refundable deposits 209,577 146,794
Prepaid expenses 138,023 212,085
Employee receivables 58,193 32,452
Prepayments on income and sales tax 48,240 109,436
Income tax deposit - licenses and imports 33,642 18,385
Petty cash and others 19,802 37,259
Social security work injury claims 10,903 29,559
Total 1,007,629 608,958

—_— e
12, Trade receivable

2022 2021

jD D
Trade receivables (*) 9,807 475 8,261,186
Less: expected credit losses allowance (**) (4,023,417) (3,898,528)
Net 5,784,058 4,362,658

(*) Receivables aging details are as following:

2022 2021

D JD
From 1 to 60 days 5,283,809 3,767,109
From 61 to 120 days 410,216 313,825
From 121 to 180 days 122415 112,966
From 181 to 365 days 190,291 331,443
More than 365 days 3,800,654 3,735,843
Total 9,807,475 8,261,186

(**) Allowance for expected credit losses movement during the year:

2022 2021

D D
Balance - beginning of year 3,898,528 4,311,581
Provided during the year 150,087 -
Incurred losses (25,198) (413,053)
Balance - end of year 4,023,417 3,898,528
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Ready Mix Conerete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

13. Statutory reserve

Public Shareholding Company (Parent)

Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company’s subscribed capital. However,
the Company may, with the approval of the General Assembly, continue to deduct this annual ratio
until this reserve equals the subscribed capital of the Company in full. Such reserve is not available for
dividends distribution,

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the law.

Limited Liability Company (Subsidiary)

Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals of the Company’s subscribed capital. Such reserve is not
available for dividends distribution.

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the law.

Private Shareholding Company (Subsidiary)

Statutory reserve is allocated according to the Jordanian Companies Law by deducting 10% of the
annual net profit until the reserve equals one quarter of the Company’s subscribed capital. Such
reserve is not available for dividends distribution.

For the general assembly after exhausting other reserves to decide in an extraordinary meeting to
quench its losses from the accumulated amounts in statuary reserve, and to rebuild it in accordance
with the provisions of the law.

14. Voluntary reserve

This reserve is determined in accordance with the Jordanian Companies Law by allocating not more
than 20% annually of the profit to this reserve.

15. Other credit balances

2022 2021

JD D
Sales tax deposits 401,903 160,486
Rewards provision (*) 382475 80,510
Sharcholders deposits 254,622 265,440
Accrued expenses 207 401 182,319
Unecarned rent 161,804 134,317
Employee vacation provision (**) 110,707 132,703
Social security deposits 47,934 44,638
Potential lawsuits provision (***) 46,249 83,324
End of service indemnity provision (****) 41,765 83,963
Employees incomae tax deposits 11,301 8,518
Employees Savings Fund 5,01 131,341
National contribution deposits(*****) 2,654 1,708
Employeas payable 646 14,000
Taotal 1,674,462 1,323,267
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Ready Mix Concrele and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

(*) Reward provision

Balance - beginning of year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year

Balance = end of year

(**) Employee vacation provision

Balance - beginning of year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year

Balance - end of year

(***) Potential lawsuits provision

Balance - beginning of year

Paid during the year

Balance - end of year

(****) End of service indemnity provision

Balance - beginning of year
Provided during the year
Paid during the year

Balance - end of year
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2022 2021
JD jD
80,510 23,120
382,475 65,000
(80,510) (7,610)
382475 bﬂn
2022 2021
D JD
132,703 139,301
40,000 5,887
(61,996) (12,485)
110,707 132,703
2022 2021
1D 1D
83,324 83,324
(37,075) .
_46,249 83,324
2022 2021
JD D
83,963 261,318
41,458 52,414
(83,656) (229,769)
41,765 83,963



Ready Mix Concrete and Construction Supplies
Public Shareholding Company
Amman = The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

MNotes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

16.

17.

(*****) National contribution deposits

2022 2021
JD JD
Balance - beginning of year 1,708 870
Provided during the year-subsidary 929 1,708
Provided during the year 9,718 -
Paid during the year (9,701) (870)
Balance - end of year 2,654 T
Trade payables
Trade payables concentrate in four receivables comprising 52% of tolal payables.
Loans
2022 2021
Current porlion Non-current portion Total tatal
D jD jD 1D
Cairo Amman Bank- parent () 600,000 1,757,833 2,357,833 2,900,000
Arab Bank Loan (**)- parent 1,440,000 760,000 2,200,000 750,000
Arab Bank Loan (***)- subsidiary 180,000 - 180,000 -
Capital Bank Loan (***) - subsidiary 83,352 62,195 145,547 226,577
Cairo Amman Bank (**+*%) .
subsidiary 100,008 8491 108,499 206,637
Tatal 2,403,360 2,588,518 4,9‘%9- 1,083,214

(*) The loan mentioned is granted by the Cario Bank to the Parent Company in the amount of JD
3,000,000 at an interest rate of 4% and is repayable under 60 equal monthly installments, each
installment is JD 50,000 and the first installment is due on January 31, 2022. Where it's guaranteed
by a real estate mortgage on the company's lands and buildings, with a net book value of D
2,334,956, as mentioned in note No, (3).

(**) The loan mentioned above granted from Arab bank to the parent company in the amount of JD
2,400,000 at interest rate of %10.625 and is repayable under 24 equal monthly installments, each
installment is JD 120,000 and the first installment is due on November 31,2022

(***) The loan mentioned above is granted by the Arab Bank to the Concrete Technology company
(subsidiary) for an amount of JD 180,000 at an interest rate of 9.25%. It is repayable on a 5 equal
installments, the first installment was due on November 1,2022 and these facilities are granted with
a guarantee of a promising noots.

(****) The above loan is granted by the Capital Bank to the United Ready Mix Concrete (subsidiary) for
an amount of JD 250,000 at an interest rate of 2%, It is repayable 36 equal installments. Each
installment is JD 6,946 and the first installment was due on October 22, 2021 under the personal
guarantea of Mr. Rajaa Khalil Alami.

(*****) The loan mentioned above is granted by the Cairo Amman Bank to Concrete Technology
Company (Subsidiary) for amount of D 300,000 at an interest rate of 2%. It is repayable under 36
equal installments, the first installment is due on January 30, 2021, and these facilities were granted
under the personal guarantee of Mr. Rajaa Khalil Alami.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

18. Banks overdraft

Bank Interest rate 2022 2021
% JD D
Arab bank 10.625 2,105,207 3,127,619
Cairo Amman Bank - parent 1225 1,231,103 1,598,096
Egyptian Arab Land Bank 11 678,608 1,192,175
Arab Banking Corporation 11 274,041 683,466
Cairo Amman Bank - subsidiary 1225 151,677 143,275
Total 4,440,636 6,744,631

19. Cost of sale

2022 2021

JD JD
Raw material used in production 27,624,350 21,245,019
Manufacturing cost (*) 8,336,610 7,243,408
Total 35,960,960 28,488,427

—
e ———_ P _P: .-, =
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Public Shareholding Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Motes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022

(*) Manufacturing cost consist of the following;

2022 2021
JD 1D
Salaries, wages and related benefits 1,896,818 1,837,213
Maintenance and vehicle expenses 1,339,149 1,204,849
Depreclation 1,200,074 1,127,906
Oil, fuel and pumps rent 1,767,948 1,048,568
Overtlime and vacation 809,208 659,172
Rewards 254,222 48,495
Social security 235,853 210,613
Insurances and licease 192,755 193,475
Water and electricity 162,905 536,317
Subscriptions, fees and stamps 61,655 39,666
Rents B6,696 47,445
Security 72,468 59,660
Employees savings fund 64,975 64,906
Transportation expenses 27,666 10,550
Travel and transportation 27,252 12,570
Phone and postal 25,824 21,399
Miscellaneous 25,305 32,838
Non - refundable cement purchases tax 22,929 36,596
Hospitality 18,935 17,009
Stationery 13,047 6,352
General safety and work injury 11,205 8.216
Laboratory tests 9,385 10,142
Information technology 6,871 4,296
Advertising 3,464 5155
Total 8,336,610 7,243,408
20. Other revenues, net
2022 2021
Jj JD
Rents 337,919 294,536
Others 154,241 40,820
Gain from sale of property, plant and equipment 120,320 225,399
Recovery of obselate and slow moving
inventory provision 11,452 =
Dividends 1,096 1,315
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (27,960) 60,151
Met 597,068 622,221
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21. Administrative expenses

2022 2021
JD JD

Salaries, wages & related benefits () 1,100,163 1,113,112
Employees rewards 170,119 49,145
Expected eredit losses 150,087 -
Social security 100,513 98,603
Depreciation 49,922 52,857
Non-deductible tax 89,233 58,348
[nsurance 80,118 84,739
Transportation allowance of board of directors and

audit, risk and governance committee 78,000 78,000
Travel & transportation 77,124 38,298
Subscriptions, fees & stamps 96,968 91,212
Qvertime 57,742 44,080
Dapreciation of investment property 56,551 56,550
Rewards for borad of directors 50,000 -
Annual vacations allowance 40,000 5,867
Professional fees 39,030 50,961
Employees saving 38,084 37,516
Electricity, water & fuel 34,123 38,930
Hospitality 29,454 11,759
End of service indemnity 25,213 34,698
Bank fees & guarantee 20,730 18,294
Information technology 20,297 5,695
Collection commissions 17,498 .
Miscellaneous 15,865 28,771
Donations 16,164 0,038
Cleaning & maintenance 15,542 12,513
Advertising 13,190 12,237
Telecommunicabion 12,626 14,589
Vehicles 6,464 7,347
Stationery & printings 5,136 B,788
Incurred losses 3,243 -
Training 2,270 950
Rents - 5,543
Total 2,512,469 2,069,370

e ——s

(*) Within salaries, wages and related benefits an amount of JD 537,072 which represent salaries and
benefits for the higher management of company.
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22, Profit per share

23,

24,

25.

26.

2022 2021
D JD
Profit of the year 1,808,554 610,079
Weighted average number of shares 25,000,000 25,000,000
Profit per share JD 0/072 JD 0/024
—_— S
Contingent liabilities
Values Margins Net
JD D JD
Guarantees and letter of credit 1,219,300 (489,249) 730,051

Contra accounts

As of December 31, 2022 there are drawn checks from Cairo Amman Bank amounting to JD 252,000
deposited in the company account at Arab banl.

Lawsuits

According to the lawyer letter there are legal cases raised from others against the acompany amounting
to JI2 49,789, and there are legal cases raised by the company against others amounting to JD
3,904,931 these cases still outstanding in the related courts, and in the opinion of the tax consultant the
recorded provisions are sufficient.

Risk management

a)

b)

€)

Capital risk:

Regularly, the capital structure is reviewed and the cost of capital and the risks associated with
capital are considered. In addition, capital is managed properly to ensure continuing as a going
concern while maximizing the return through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

Currency risk:

~ Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

— The risk arises on certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies, which imposes sort of
risk due to fluctuations in exchange rates during the year,

~ Most of foreign currency transactions are in USD, and JD exchange rate is fixed against USD.

Interest rate risk;

— Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

— The risk arises on exposure to a fluctuation in market interest rates resulting from borrowings
and depositing in banks.

-~ The risk is managed by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating interest rates
balances during the financial year.
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- The following table shows the sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in interest rates
paid by the entity on borrowing from the banks:

The effect on
As at December 31, 2021 Change in interest profit (loss)
Y D
Bank facilities and loans i 05 t (47,162)

d) Other price risk:

~ Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the
market.

~ The risk arises from investing in equity investments. Investment impairment loss was calculated
which its market value have declined

~ The following table shows the sensitivity to profit or loss and equity to the changes in the listed
prices of investments in equity instruments, assuming no changes to the rest of other variables:

The effect on profit The effect on

As at December 31, 2022 Change in price (loss) owners equity
% JD JD
Investment in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 15 6,131 6,131
The effect on profit The effect on
As at December 31, 2021 Change in price (loss) owners equity
Y% D D

Investment in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 5 7,529 7,529

g) Credit risk:

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation.

Rogularly, the credit ratings of debtors and the volume of transactions with those debtors
during the year are monitored.

Ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of debtors, also adequate
provisions for doubtful receivables is taken.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements represents the -
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into account the value of any collateral
obtained.

f) Ligquidity risl:

~ Liquidity risk is the risk of encountering difficulty in meeting obligations associated with
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial assets.

~ Liquidity risk is managed through monitoring cash flows and matching with maturity dates of
the financial assets and liabilities.
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-The following table shows the maturity dates of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31:

Less than 1 year More than 1 year

Description 2022 7 2022 21
Financial assets: D D M) D
Investment in financial assels at fair value through
other comprehensive income - . 6,836,190 6,836,190
Investment in financial assets at fair value tirough
profit or loss 122,631 150,391 - -
Checks under collection and on hand 0,315,789 7303470 260,218 454,690
Checks on hand - related parties 110,000 - < =
Due form related parties 624,961 1,159,826 -
Accounts receivable and ather debit balances 821,366 37,749 - -
Tracle receivables 5,784,058 4,362,658 8 3
Current accounts at bank 304,568 163,329 -
Total 17,083,373 13,377,623 7,096,408 7,290,880
Finanelal liabilities:
Due o related partics 5,340,040 5,027,296 - -
Other eredit balances 1,512,658 1,216,440 vl ¥
Deferred checks 1,046,850 930,716 - .
Deferred chacks - ralated partics 6,954,723 5,040,407 - .
Trade payables 7,138,115 1,482,950 . A
Loans 2,403,260 1,389,989 2,568,519 2,693,225
Banks overdrafl 400,636 6,744,631 - -
Tatal 28,536,382 5,752,441 7,588,519 2,193,225

- —
27. Fair value of financial instruments

— The table below represents the fair value of the financial instruments using valuation method. there

are different levels as follows:

— Level 1: listed prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs rather than prices listed in level 1 and observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices).

- Level 3. inputs for the asset or liability is not based on comparable market data that can be
observed (non-observable inputs).

Levels

As at December 31, 2021 1 2 Total
Financial Assets D D D

[nvestment in financial assets at fair value through
profitor loss 122,631 - 122,631

Investment in financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income - 6,836,190 6,836,190

Total 122,631 6,836,190 6,958,821

- Book value of financial instruments is almost equal to the fair value.
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28. Financial statement for the subsidiary

The consolidated financial statement includes the financial statement of the subsidiaries as at

December 31, 2022 as follows:

Retained earmings
Company name Legal entity Paid in Capital Total Assets Tolal liabilities  (Accumulated losses)
b b b D

Ampman for Construction Equipment Supply Company LLC 3000 %09 73589 (16021)
Concrete Technology Company LLC 80,000 118580 795,547 2988
Arabic Chinese Company for Leasehold and Sale of
Equipment LLC 100,000 1801277 1,369,906 107,433
United Ready Mix Concrete Co. PLC §00,000 16,739 253504 (55,5H)
Masafat for Housing Company LLC 30,000 789,155 783,14 4,567

29, Possible effects of economic fluctuations

As a result of the current global conflict, where the entity took into account any possible impact of the
current economic fluctuations in the inputs of future macroeconomic factors when determining the
severity and probability of economic scenatios to determine the expected credit losses.

As a result of the potential effects of the Corona virus, the management of the facility has taken {uture
information for at least the twelve months following the reporting period, whether related to the
negative effects of the virus on the course of business or the ability to pay its debts. The management of
the facility carried out a study of the possible effects of the current economic fluctuations in determining
the declared amounts of the financial and non-financial assets of the facility, which represent the
management's best estimates based on the information that ean be observed. Markets remain volatile
and the amounts recorded remain sensitive to fluctuations in the market.

30. Reclassification

2021 balances have been reclassified to conform to the adopted classification in 2022.
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